
JOHN WARD
Head of Finance and Governance Services

Contact: Graham Thrussell on 01243 534653
Email: gthrussell@chichester.gov.uk

East Pallant House
1 East Pallant
Chichester
West Sussex
PO19 1TY
Tel: 01243 785166
www.chichester.gov.uk

 Notice of Meeting
To All Members of Chichester District Council

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of THE COUNCIL in the Council Chamber 
East Pallant House at East Pallant Chichester West Sussex PO19 1TY on Tuesday 6 
March 2018 at 14:00 for the transaction of the business set out in the agenda below

DIANE SHEPHERD
Chief Executive

Monday 26 February 2018

NOTES

(1) The Council meeting will be preceded by the following arrangements for members: 

 13:00 Lunch (after the Cabinet meeting at 09:30) 

 13:30 Priory Park Centenary Presentation – Richard Plowman

 13:45 Intermission

(2)  Members are requested to bring with them to this meeting their copies of the agendas 
and agenda supplements for the Cabinet meetings on Tuesday 6 February 2018 and 
Tuesday 6 March 2018 (the papers may also be viewed in the committee papers 
section of Chichester District Council’s website)

AGENDA

PRELIMINARY MATTERS

1  Approval of Minutes (pages 1 to 17)

After an initial welcome by the Chairman, the Council will be asked to approve as a 
correct record the attached minutes of its meeting on Tuesday 23 January 2018.

Public Document Pack



2  Late Items 

The Chairman will announce any late items which are to be dealt with under 
agenda item 17 (Late Items).

3  Declarations of Interests 

Members and officers are requested to make any declarations of disclosable 
pecuniary, personal and/or prejudicial interests which they have in respect of 
matters on the agenda for this meeting.

4  Chairman's Announcements 

Apologies for absence will be notified at this point. 

The Chairman will make any specific announcements. 

5  Public Question Time 

In accordance with Chichester District Council’s public questions scheme and with 
reference to standing order 6 in Part 4 A and section 5.6 in Part 5 of the Chichester 
District Council Constitution, consideration will be given at this point in the meeting 
to questions which have been submitted by members of the public in writing by 
12:00 on the previous working day. The time allocated for public question time is 
subject to the chairman’s discretion to extend the period for each member of the 
public (five minutes) or the total time for public questions (15 minutes).

RECOMMENDATIONS BY THE CABINET

The Council is requested to consider the following recommendations in agenda 
items 6 to 12 and also (within Part II) agenda item 19, which were made or are 
anticipated to be made by the Cabinet at its meetings on Tuesday 6 February 2018 
and Tuesday 6 March 2018.

A - TUESDAY 6 FEBRUARY 2018

6  Budget Spending Plans 2018-2019 (pages 18 to 33)

The following papers are relevant to this item:

 The Council Tax Resolution report and its three appendices circulated with 
the Council agenda for this meeting.

 The agenda report (pages 10 to 17), its four appendices in the agenda 
supplement (pages 1 to 55) and an amendment identified in the third 
agenda supplement considered by the Cabinet at its meeting on Tuesday 6 
February 2018. 

The Cabinet’s recommendations (set out below for information only in the second 
[Note]) have been superseded by the following: 



RECOMMENDATION TO THE COUNCIL

(1) That following consideration of the draft budget by the Cabinet the Budget 
for 2018-2019 be approved as follows:

i. The 2018-2019 Net Revenue Budget in respect of Chichester District 
Council’s own services be approved at £13,025,600.

ii. The 2018-19 Council Tax Requirement in respect of Chichester 
District Council’s own services be approved at £8,227,400.

iii. A Council Tax of £155.81 (Band D equivalent) be approved.  This 
represents a £5.00 (3.32 %) increase on the Band D charge.

iv. The Investment Opportunities Reserve be increased by £861,300.

(2) That the Council approves the Resolutions in Appendix A to the Council Tax 
Resolution report.

[Note The foregoing recommendations are required by standing order 9.5 in 
Chichester District Council’s Constitution (pursuant to regulation 2 (3) of the Local 
Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2014) to be the 
subject of a recorded vote]

[Note The recommendations to the Council made by the Cabinet in respect of this 
agenda ite were as follows:

(1) That a net budget requirement of £12,988,300 for 2018-2019 be approved.

(2) That council tax be increased by £5 from £150.81 to £155.81 for a band D 
equivalent in 2018-2019.

(3) That the Investment Opportunities Reserve be increased by £820,200. 

(4) That, should the final settlement differ from the provisional settlement, any 
increase or decrease be dealt with by adjusting the transfer to the 
Investment Opportunities Reserve above. 

(5) The capital programme including the asset renewal programme (appendix 
1c and 1d) be approved.] 

7  Consideration of Consultation Responses and Modifications to Chichester 
District Council's Infrastructure Business Plan 

The papers relevant to this item are the agenda report and its two appendices* in 
the agenda supplement considered by the Cabinet at its meeting on Tuesday 6 
February 2018 (respectively pages 18 to 21 and 56 to 78).

[Note Due to the size of appendix 2 (Chichester District Council’s Infrastructure 
Business Plan 2017-2022 as modified) only the CIL spending plan extract was 
circulated with the Cabinet agenda papers but the entire document may be viewed 
electronically on Chichester District Council’s website within the committee papers 
page for this meeting in the second agenda supplement and a monochrome hard 



copy is available in the Members Room at East Pallant House]

RECOMMENDATION TO THE COUNCIL

(1) That the proposed responses to the representations received and 
subsequent modifications to the Infrastructure Business Plan as set out in 
appendix 1 to the agenda report be approved. 

(2) That the amended Infrastructure Business Plan including the CIL Spending 
Plan attached as appendix 2 to the agenda report be approved.

8  Draft Treasury Management Strategy 2018-2019 

The papers relevant to this item are the agenda report, its four appendices* in the 
agenda supplement (respectively pages 22 to 25 and 79 to 114) and an 
amendment identified in the third agenda supplement considered by the Cabinet at 
its meeting on Tuesday 6 February 2018.

RECOMMENDATION TO THE COUNCIL

(1) That the Treasury Management Policy and Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement for 2018-2019 as contained in appendix 2 (as amended) of the 
agenda report be approved.

(2) That the Investment Strategy 2018-2019 as detailed in the Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement be approved.

(3) That the Prudential Indicators and Limits for 2018-2019 included in 
appendix 2 of the agenda report be approved.

B - TUESDAY 6 MARCH 2018

9  Senior Staff Pay Policy Statement 2018-2019 

The papers relevant to this item, which will be considered by the Cabinet on 
Tuesday 6 March 2018 immediately prior to this meeting, are the Cabinet agenda 
report (pages 13 to 32) and appendix A with its nine appendices, of which only 
appendix A and appendices 1 and 5 thereto have been circulated in hard copy 
(pages 1 to 32), with the remainder and the background paper available to view 
online only in the second agenda supplement.

It is anticipated that the following recommendation will be made by the Cabinet to 
the Council:

RECOMMENDATION TO THE COUNCIL

That the Senior Staff Pay Policy Statement 2018-2019 be published.

10  Solent Recreation Mitigation Strategy 

The papers relevant to this item which will be considered by the Cabinet on 
Tuesday 6 March 2018 immediately prior to this meeting are the Cabinet agenda 



report and its appendix in the agenda supplement (respectively pages 24 to 26 and 
1 to 28).

It is anticipated that the following recommendation will be made by the Cabinet to 
the Council:

RECOMMENDATION TO THE COUNCIL

That the definitive Solent Recreation Mitigation Strategy be approved for use in the 
determination of relevant planning applications.

11  South Downs Local Plan - Duty to Co-operate 

The papers relevant to this item which will be considered by the Cabinet on 
Tuesday 6 March 2018 immediately prior to this meeting are the Cabinet agenda 
report and its appendix (pages 27 to 32).

It is anticipated that the following recommendation will be made by the Cabinet to 
the Council:

RECOMMENDATION TO THE COUNCIL

That, subject to the completion of the ongoing evidence-based work and the 
assessment of sites to meet the identified housing needs associated with the Local 
Plan Review, Chichester District Council will assess the ability to meet some or all 
of the unmet housing needs of approximately 44 dwellings per annum arising from 
the part of the South Downs National Park within Chichester District via the 
Chichester Local Plan Review.

12  Update on Tangmere Strategic Development Location Compulsory Purchase 
Order 

The papers relevant to this item which will be considered by the Cabinet on 
Tuesday 6 March 2018 immediately prior to this meeting are the Cabinet agenda 
report (pages 33 to 36).

It is anticipated that the following recommendation will be made by the Cabinet to 
the Council:

RECOMMENDATION TO THE COUNCIL

That a sum of £150,000 be allocated from the remaining Planning Delivery Grant 
Reserve and General Reserve to fund the continued work on the Compulsory 
Purchase Order in respect of the Tangmere Strategic Development Location.

RECOMMENDATIONS BY THE BOUNDARY REVIEW PANEL

The Council is requested to consider the following recommendations in agenda 
items 13 to 15, which were made by the Boundary Review Panel at its meeting on 
Friday 23 February 2018.



13  Community Governance Review - Chichester City Council 

At its meeting on Friday 23 February 2018 the Boundary Review Panel made the 
following recommendation to the Council:

RECOMMENDATION TO THE COUNCIL 

That the community governance review of Chichester City Council proceeds to the 
second consultation stage based on the Chichester City Council proposal to:

(1) Re-ward the City Council to ensure coterminocity with the Chichester 
District Council wards and

(2) Reduce the number of Chichester City Council members from 20 to 18.

[Note The Boundary Review Panel requested that the proposed timetable for the 
Chichester City Council community governance review be set out in this agenda:

6 March 2018 Consideration by the Council of the recommendation to commence 
the second stage consultation

7 March 2018 Commencement of second stage consultation (three weeks)
 
28 March 2018 Conclusion of second stage consultation 

April 2018 Consideration by Boundary Review Panel of consultation responses

22 May 2018 Consideration by the Council of the Boundary Review Panel’s 
recommendation 

May/June 2018 Contact the Local Government Boundary Commission for England 
to request the amendments to the wards and the number of members] 

14  Community Governance Review - Increase in Number of Members for 
Westhampnett Parish Council 

At its meeting on Friday 23 February 2018 the Boundary Review Panel made the 
following recommendation to the Council:

RECOMMENDATION TO THE COUNCIL 

That the number of members on Westhampnett Parish Council be increased from 
seven to nine.

15  Community Governance Review - Harting Parish Council 

At its meeting on Friday 23 February 2018 the Boundary Review Panel made the 
following recommendation to the Council:



RECOMMENDATION TO THE COUNCIL 

That a community governance review be undertaken in respect of the properties 
and land identified by Harting Parish Council which it has requested should be 
moved from the Rogate Parish Council area to the Harting Parish Council area.

QUESTIONS TO THE EXECUTIVE

16  Questions to the Executive 

[Note In accordance with standing order 14.11 of Chichester District Council’s 
Constitution, this item is allocated a maximum duration of 40 minutes]

FINAL MATTERS

17  Late Items 

(a) Items added to the agenda papers and made available for public inspection.

(b) Items which the chairman has agreed should be taken as matters of 
urgency by reason of special circumstances to be reported at the meeting 
and recorded in the minutes.

18  Exclusion of the Press and Public 

The Council is asked to consider in respect of agenda item 19 (Southern Gateway 
Implementation) making a resolution that the public including the press should be 
excluded from the meeting on the following grounds of exemption in Schedule 12A 
to the Local Government Act 1972: 

 Paragraph 1 (information relating to any individual)

 Paragraph 3 (information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information))  

 Paragraph 5 (information in respect of which a claim to legal professional 
privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings) 

 Paragraph 6 (information which reveals that the authority proposes – (a) to 
give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which requirements 
are imposed on a person; or (b) to make an order or direction under any 
enactment) and because, in all the circumstances of the case, the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption of that information outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 

[Note The confidential exempt Part II report and its two appendices for agenda 
item 19 were circulated as part of the Cabinet agenda and agenda supplement to 
members of Chichester District Council and relevant officers only (printed on 
salmon paper)]



RECOMMENDATION BY THE CABINET

The Council is requested to consider the following recommendations in agenda 
item 19 (a Part II confidential exempt matter), which it is anticipated will be made 
by the Cabinet at its meeting on Tuesday 6 6 March 2018.

TUESDAY 6 MARCH 2018

19  Southern Gateway Implementation 

The papers relevant to this item which will be considered by the Cabinet on 
Tuesday 6 March 2018 immediately prior to this meeting are Part II confidential 
exempt material* on salmon-coloured paper for members and relevant officers 
only. They are the Cabinet report (pages 55 to 62) and its two appendices in the 
agenda supplement (pages 296 to 329). 

It is anticipated that the following recommendations will be made by the Cabinet to 
the Council:

(1) The offer of £5m of funding from the Coast to Capital LEP be accepted, and 
the Funding Agreement attached as appendix 1 be approved.

(2) Chichester District Council formally requests the LEP to authorise use of 
Flexibility Funding, as set out in para 6.1.1.1 of the report, to enable draw 
down of funds to commence in 2017-2018.

(3) In the event that Flexibility Funding is approved by the LEP, Chichester 
District Council’s Capital Programme be amended as follows:

 £500,000 of LEP funding will be applied to the Enterprise Centre in 
2017-2018. 

 £500,000 of Chichester District Council’s capital reserves be 
transferred from the Enterprise Centre to the Southern Gateway 
project in 2018-2019 to supplement the £4.5m balance of LEP 
funding.

(4) Should the LEP refuse Chichester District Council’s request to utilise 
Flexibility Funding, and should Chichester District Council also be unable to 
draw down funding by 31 March 2018, delegated authority be given to the 
Executive Director to amend the funding agreement to reflect a reduction in 
funding to £4.5m following consultation with the Leader of the Council.

(5) The Executive Director be given delegated authority to make other minor 
amendments to the funding agreement prior to signature after consultation 
with the Leader of the Council.

(6) The Executive Director be given delegated authority to expend the LEP 
funding in accordance with the finalised Funding Agreement after 
consultation with the Leader of the Council.

(7) Chichester District Council is prepared, in principle, to use its compulsory 
purchase powers to make and promote a compulsory purchase order(s) to 



acquire the relevant land for a comprehensive development comprising a 
mix of uses as set out in the adopted Southern Gateway Masterplan area 
(attached as appendix 2).

NOTES

(1) The press and public may be excluded from the meeting during any item of 
business wherever it is likely that there would be disclosure of ‘exempt 
information’ as defined in section 100A of and Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972.

(2) The open proceedings of this meeting will be audio recorded and the recording 
will be retained in accordance with the council’s information and data policies. If 
a member of the public enters the committee room or makes a representation to 
the meeting, they will be deemed to have consented to being audio recorded. If 
members of the public have any queries regarding the audio recording of this 
meeting, please liaise with the contact for this meeting at the front of this 
agenda.

(3) Subject to the provisions allowing the exclusion of the press and public, the 
photographing, filming or recording of this meeting from the public seating area 
is permitted. To assist with the management of the meeting, anyone wishing to 
do this is asked to inform the chairman of the meeting of their intention before 
the meeting starts. The use of mobile devices for access to social media is 
permitted, but these should be switched to silent for the duration of the meeting. 
Those undertaking such activities must do so discreetly and not disrupt the 
meeting, for example by oral commentary, excessive noise, distracting 
movement or flash photography. Filming of children, vulnerable adults or 
members of the audience who object should be avoided.



     MEMBERS

Mrs C Apel
Mr G Barrett
Mr R Barrow

Mr J Brown
Mr P Budge
Mr A Collins
Mr J Connor

Mr T Dempster
Mr A Dignum

Mrs P Dignum
Mrs J Duncton

Mr M Dunn
Mr J F Elliott

Mr J W Elliott
Mr N Galloway
Mrs N Graves

Mr M Hall
Mrs E Hamilton
Mrs P Hardwick

Mr R Hayes
Mr G Hicks

Mr L Hixson
Mr F Hobbs
Mrs J Kilby

Mrs E Lintill
Mr S Lloyd-Williams
Mr L Macey
Mr K Martin
Mr G McAra
Mr S Morley
Mr A G F Moss
Caroline Neville
Mr S Oakley
Mr C Page
Mrs P Plant
Mr R Plowman
Mr H Potter
Mrs C Purnell
Mr J Ransley
Mr J Ridd
Mr A Shaxson
Mrs J Tassell
Mrs S Taylor
Mr N Thomas
Mrs P Tull
Mr D Wakeham
Mr P Wilding



Minutes of the meeting of the Council held in the Committee Rooms at East Pallant 
House Chichester West Sussex on Tuesday 23 January 2018 at 14:00

Members 
Present

Mrs N Graves (Vice-Chairman), Mrs E Hamilton (Chairman), 
Mrs C Apel, Mr R Barrow, Mr J Brown, Mr P Budge, 
Mr J Connor, Mr A Collins, Mr A Dignum, Mrs P Dignum, 
Mrs J Duncton, Mr M Dunn, Mr J W Elliott, Mr M Hall, 
Mr R Hayes, Mr G Hicks, Mr F Hobbs, Mrs J Kilby, Mrs E Lintill, 
Mr S Lloyd-Williams, Mr L Macey, Mr K Martin, Mr G McAra, 
Mr S Morley, Caroline Neville, Mr S Oakley, Mr C Page, 
Mrs P Plant, Mr R Plowman, Mr H Potter, Mrs C Purnell, 
Mr J Ransley, Mr J Ridd, Mr A Shaxson, Mrs S Taylor, 
Mr N Thomas, Mrs P Tull, Mr D Wakeham and Mr P Wilding

Members Absent Mr G Barrett, Mr T Dempster, Mr J F Elliott, Mr N Galloway, 
Mrs P Hardwick, Mr L Hixson, Mrs G Keegan and Mrs J Tassell

Officers Present Mrs J Dodsworth (Head of Business Improvement Services), 
Mr A Frost (Head of Planning Services), Mrs J Hotchkiss (Head 
of Commercial Services), Mr D Hyland (Community and 
Partnerships Support Manager), Mr P E Over (Executive 
Director), Mrs L Rudziak (Head of Housing & Environment 
Services), Mrs D Shepherd (Chief Executive), Mr G Thrussell 
(Senior Member Services Officer) and Mr J Ward (Head of 
Finance & Governance Services)

1   Approval of Minutes 

The Chairman welcomed everyone present to this first Council meeting of 2018 and she 
explained the emergency evacuation procedure.

The Council formally received the minutes of its previous meeting on 21 November 2017, 
which had been circulated with the agenda for this meeting. 

There were no proposed changes to those minutes.  

Decision

The Council voted unanimously on a show of hands to make the resolution below.

RESOLVED

That the minutes of the Council’s meeting on Tuesday 21 November 2017 be approved 
without amendment.

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



Mrs Hamilton then duly signed and dated as a correct record the final (twenty-fourth) page 
of the official version of the minutes.

[Note This para and paras 278 to 295 below summarise the consideration of and 
conclusion to agenda items 1 to 19 inclusive but for full details of the matters summarised 
hereunder please refer to the audio recording facility via the link below. 

http://chichester.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=923&Ver=4 ]

2   Late Items 

There were no late items at agenda item 18 for consideration at this meeting.

3   Declarations of Interests 

Declarations of personal interests were made in respect of agenda item 6 (Chichester 
Growth Deal 2018-2023) by the undermentioned who were members of West Sussex 
County Council, which was a partner with Chichester District Council to deliver the 
priorities and projects identified in the Chichester Growth Deal:

(1) Mrs Duncton

(2) Mr Oakley
 
(3) Mrs Purnell

Mr Oakley also declared a personal interest in agenda item 8 (New Homes Bonus (Parish 
Allocations) Policy) as a member of Tangmere Parish Council.

[Note Hereafter in these minutes Chichester District Council is denoted by CDC]

4   Chairman's Announcements 

The following apologies for absence had been received:

Mr Barrett, Mr J F Elliott, Mrs Hardwick, Mr Hixson, Mr Galloway, Mrs Keegan and Mrs 
Tassell.

Mrs Hamilton said that in addition to the many pre-Christmas events and functions she 
attended as Chairman, she wished to highlight two particular engagements:

(1) Visit by Her Majesty the Queen 

Mrs Hamilton and Mrs Shepherd, CDC Chief Executive, were honoured to be among the 
dignitaries who were introduced to Her Majesty the Queen when she visited Chichester 
Festival Theatre on Thursday 30 November 2017. It was a very happy occasion. 

  (2) Paul Jarvis Deceased

On Thursday 21 December 2017 Mrs Hamilton attended the funeral thanksgiving service 
for Paul Jarvis, the former CDC member who had represented the North Mundham ward 
from May 2011 until March 2017, when he resigned due to ill-health. Mr Jarvis had borne 

Page 2

http://chichester.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=923&Ver=4


very bravely both the serious injuries he had sustained in a road traffic accident shortly 
before his first election as a CDC member and then cancer. His funeral was a memorable 
and well-supported service, which he had planned and it had included the poignant playing 
of the Beatles’ song (I get by) With a Little Help from my Friends. 

5   Public Question Time 

No public questions had been submitted for this meeting.

6   Chichester Growth Deal 2017-2023 

The Council considered the recommendations made to it by the Cabinet at its meeting on 
Tuesday 5 December 2017, as set out on the face of the Council agenda, the details in 
respect of which were contained in the report and its two appendices on pages 1 to 15 of 
the Cabinet agenda. 

In her introduction Mrs Hamilton referred to the mention of ‘aforesaid amendments’ in the 
first of the Cabinet’s recommendations. As the nature of these were not specified in the 
Council agenda, she explained they were recorded on page 5 of the minutes of the 
Cabinet’s meeting, which were circulated with the Cabinet agenda for 9 January 2018 and 
consisted of two textual changes to the documents in appendices 1 and 2 as follows:

 In appendix A to appendix 1 on page 13 the reference to ‘Adur & Worthing’ in the 
fourth bullet point in the final (Outcomes) section of the Gigabit table should be 
replaced with ‘Chichester District’. 

 
 In the terms of reference in appendix 2 on page 14, the first para in clause 1.0, 

there should be inserted ‘and the Council’ after ‘Cabinet’ in the first line.’     
     
Mr Dignum (Leader of the Cabinet) formally moved the Cabinet’s recommendations and 
this was seconded by Mrs Lintill (Cabinet Member for Community Services).  

Mr Dignum explained that the Growth Deal which had been entered into between West 
Sussex County Council (WSCC) and CDC would define the two councils’ agreement on 
the priority projects for growth within Chichester District and the means of funding. 
Partnership working would focus on four major projects during 2018-2023: Chichester City 
Vision; Chichester Southern Gateway; Chichester Northern Gateway; and Gigabit West 
Sussex Fibre Broadband. CDC would lead on the second project and WSCC on the rest. 
The city-related nature of the projects reflected their scale but all Chichester District’s 
residents would benefit from economic growth of the city and improved investment returns 
on the land assets in the city. The Growth Board, with three representatives from both 
CDC (Mr Dignum, Mr Oakley and Mrs Taylor) and WSCC, would have no executive 
powers; the role and existing terms of reference of the current Infrastructure Joint Member 
Liaison Group would be subsumed within it. Any spending bids and priorities for the 
Community Infrastructure Levy as part of the preparation of the annual Infrastructure 
Business Plan would be approved by CDC’s Cabinet and WSCC’s Council. 

In reply to a question about what account would be taken in the Northgate Gateway project 
of the Grade II listed North Lodge building, Mr Dignum said that the point was noted but 
that such details were a matter for WSCC to determine. 

Page 3



Decision

On a show of hands members present voted in favour of the Cabinet’s recommendations, 
with none against and one abstention (Mr Ransley).  

The Cabinet’s recommendations were, therefore, carried.

RESOLVED
   

(1) That the Growth Deal between West Sussex County Council and Chichester District 
Council as set out in appendix 1 to the agenda report be approved, subject to the 
aforesaid amendments in appendix A to appendix 1 and in appendix 2.  

(2) That the appointment of the Leader of the Council, Susan Taylor and Simon Oakley 
recommended by the Cabinet to represent Chichester District Council on the 
Growth Board be approved. 

(3) That the Infrastructure Joint Member Liaison Group be dissolved and its role and 
terms of reference be subsumed into the Growth Board.

(4) That the terms of reference of the Growth Board (as amended) contained in 
appendix 2 to the agenda report be approved subject to comments from West 
Sussex County Council.

7   Financial Strategy and Plan 2018-2019 

The Council considered the recommendations made to it by the Cabinet at its meeting on 
Tuesday 5 December 2017, as set out on the face of the Council agenda, the details in 
respect of which were contained in the report and its first two appendices on pages 16 to 
32 of the Cabinet agenda and the third appendix in the first agenda supplement. 

In her introduction Mrs Hamilton (a) referred to the note on the Council agenda stating that 
recommendation (3) made by the Cabinet would be the subject of an amendment proposal 
and (b) advised that the text of recommendation (4) would be changed in view of the 
unsuccessful outcome of the bid mentioned therein, as a consequence of which the words 
‘participates in the West Sussex 100% Business Rates Pilot for 2018-2019 if the bid is 
accepted by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government or’ were no 
longer applicable and so had been deleted.   

Mr Wilding (Cabinet Member for Corporate Services) formally moved the Cabinet’s 
recommendations and this was seconded by Mr Dignum (Leader of the Cabinet).

Mrs Tull, the chairman of CDC’s Corporate Governance and Audit Committee (CGAC) 
commented that the recommendation to the Cabinet made by the CGAC at its meeting on 
23 November 2017 (minute 161), and which had been approved in an amended form by 
the Cabinet on 5 December 2017 (recommendation (3)), was now to be the subject of a 
further amendment as explained in the Council agenda. She confirmed her support for the 
additional revision.      

Mr Wilding introduced the report, which updated CDC’s financial strategy and plan for 
2018-2019 and set the scene for the forthcoming annual budget. Whilst there was a 
degree of certainty due to being halfway through the four-year settlement with central 

Page 4



government, some elements of CDC’s revenue stream were subject to the vicissitudes of 
the wider economy.  He drew attention to the five-year financial model in appendix 2, 
which since 5 December 2017 had changed in certain respects. He summarised (a) what 
the model reflected, the council tax assumptions made and some of the more significant 
uncertainties and risks set out in para 4.16 of the agenda report; (b) the 13 key financial 
principles behind the financial strategy (appendix 1); (c) the resources position (appendix 
3) which demonstrated that CDC was in a sound and sustainable financial state going 
forward; and (d) two key changes which had been identified while preparing the budget 
estimates: (i) the lower than anticipated  income growth from the commercial programme 
board (revised down by approximately £150,000 for 2018-2019) and (ii) a general 
reduction in the current year planning fee income due to fewer large developments coming 
forward than expected (revised down by £250,000 for 2018-2019). He drew attention to 
and explained two other significant changes: (1) the receipt of the Draft Financial 
Settlement (three key factors meant there was a predicted surplus on the revenue budget 
of £1.4m) but subject to (2) the impact of adopting Accounting Standard IFRS9. It was the 
advent of (2) which had necessitated the tripartite amendment (3 (a), 3 (b) and 3 (c)) to 
recommendation 3. He outlined those amendments (details of which had been e-mailed by 
Mr Ward to all CDC members on 8 January 2018) and which he fully supported. If those 
amendments were approved, the projected £1.4m surplus for 2018-2019 would be 
reduced to approximately £0.8m, subject to the draft budget being finalised. He also 
explained the reason for the excision from the text in recommendation (4). In commending 
this prudent and conservative plan, which would continue to maintain CDC’s strong 
financial position and underpin the emerging budget, he thanked Mrs H Belenger 
(Accountancy Services Manager) and her colleagues for their hard work.

Mr Wilding, Mr ward and Mr Dignum responded to questions and comments with regard to 
(a) the need for the £6.3m General Fund Reserve in revised recommendation 3 (a) in the 
context of IFRS9; (b) the case for an against whether CDC ought to bear in mind that if it 
increased council tax other precepting authorities would or might follow suit; (c) how the 
fall in planning fee income might affect the new urgent planning policy team appointments 
(agenda item 17).  

Decision

On a show of hands members present voted in favour of the Cabinet’s recommendations, 
as amended in the case of (3) and (4), with none against and no abstentions.  

The Cabinet’s recommendations as amended aforesaid were, therefore, carried.

RESOLVED

That:

(1) The key financial principles and actions of the five-year financial strategy set out in 
appendix 1 to the agenda report be approved.

(2) That the current five-year Financial Model in appendix 2 to the agenda report be 
noted.

(3) (a) That the £5m General Fund Reserve and £1.3m Revenue Support Reserve be 
      combined to provide a £6.3m General Fund Reserve.

Page 5



(3) (b) That the draft 2018-2019 budget which will be considered by the Cabinet in 
     February 2018 should provide for a £565,000 charge to revenue in respect of   
     IFRS9 unless a statutory override is issued by the government in the meantime.

(3) (c) That in the event that the government issues a statutory override after the    
     budget is approved in March 2018, officers shall review these allocations at 3 (a)  
     and 3 (b) above and make recommendations to release potentially both the   
     £1.3m and the £565,000 back to being available for investment purposes.

(4) That it be approved that Chichester District Council continues to participate in a 
West Sussex Business Rates pool for 2018-2019.

 (5) That the current resources position as set out in appendix 3 to the agenda report be 
noted.

8   New Homes Bonus (Parish Allocations) Policy 

The Council considered the recommendation made to it by the Cabinet at its meeting on 
Tuesday 5 December 2017, as set out on the face of the Council agenda, the details in 
respect of which were contained in the report and its two appendices on pages 33 to 40 of 
the Cabinet agenda. 

Mrs Lintill (Cabinet Member for Community Services) formally moved the Cabinet’s 
recommendation and this was seconded by Mr Dignum (Leader of the Cabinet).

Mrs Lintill introduced the report, with particular reference to section 3 and para 7.1. The 
New Homes Bonus (Parish Allocations) Policy (NHB) was nearing the time for renewal and 
the Grants and Concessions Panel (GCP), which she chaired, strongly supported its 
continuation for a further four years from 2018. The revisions in the updated Policy were 
denoted by bold font in appendix 2. The benefits this commendable scheme brought to 
Chichester District’s communities, as outlined in section 4 of the report, were self-evident 
and should continue to be made available.

Members acknowledged the Policy’s achievements to date and were supportive of the 
Policy being extended. Mrs Lintill, Mr Hyland (Communities and Partnerships Support 
Manager), Mrs Shepherd and Mr Dignum responded to members’ questions and 
comments on points of detail with respect to (a) the possible reason(s) for the underspend 
in 2017 (table in appendix 1 on page 36); (b) the fact that underspends in a given year had 
not to date been rolled forward (although they were retained in the NHB reserves) did not 
mean that this could not happen in subsequent years and the request to start doing so was 
noted and would be considered; (c) the 110% maximum allocation meant that parishes 
had the facility to use the funds for a variety of projects including those over a wider area; 
(d) the availability of NHB funds was intended to reward communities which had taken 
development and the varied range of projects was set out in appendix 1 (page 36); and (e) 
the GCP viewed projects which were in the Infrastructure Business Plan in the same way 
as any other project ie in accordance with the rules and criteria.

Decision

On a show of hands members present voted in favour of the Cabinet’s recommendation 
with none against and no abstentions.  

Page 6



The Cabinet’s recommendation was, therefore, carried.

RESOLVED

That the New Homes Bonus (Parish Allocations) Policy and the delegations therein be 
approved.

9   Revised Corporate Plan 2018-2021 

The Council considered the recommendations made to it by the Cabinet at its meeting on 
Tuesday 9 January 2018, as set out on the face of the Council agenda, the details in 
respect of which were contained in the Cabinet report (pages 21 to 24) and its nine 
appendices on pages 1 to 32 of the agenda supplement. 

Mrs Hamilton pointed out that recommendation (1) stated ‘appendix 1 to the agenda report 
(as amended)’ and said that details of the amendments were given in the note at the end 
of this item on the Council agenda. 

Mr Dignum (Leader of the Cabinet) formally moved the Cabinet’s recommendation and this 
was seconded by Mrs Lintill (Cabinet Member for Community Services).

Mr Dignum introduced the report. In commending the Corporate Plan (CP), he explained 
that its purpose was to set and then implement CDC's priorities for the next few years. He 
referred to each of the CP’s five key objectives (housing, communities, environment, 
economy and CDC’s finances) and elaborated on how each of them would be achieved.  
The aim was to achieve all of those objectives with one of the lowest council tax precepts 
in West Sussex. Approval was also sought for providing £130,000 from reserves: 
£114,000 for the two-year cost of CDC’s 50% share of the social prescribing pilots and 
£16,000 for the 2019 member induction programme.

Members expressed support for an admirable CP. Their questions and comments on 
points of detail were answered by the relevant Cabinet member with respect to (a) how 
emerging government guidance on meeting environmental criteria would be taken into 
account in the Local Plan Review; (b) the affordable housing target; (c) a task and finish 
group to look at a range of practical issues in preparing for a reduction in the size of the 
Council eg timing of committee meetings and the period allowed for induction training; (d) 
the publishing each year of the performance and outcomes of the CP; (e) the need to 
encourage and persuade the District’s residents to play their part in achieving the CP’s 
objectives eg meeting recycling targets; (f) the external contingencies which might affect 
the delivery of the CP; and (g) the approval by the Cabinet on 9 January 2018 to seek the 
immediate recruitment of a Rough Sleep Outreach Worker did not involve setting and 
achieving a target of no rough sleepers which must be met because the emphasis was on 
working with each individual in the way most conducive to his or her circumstances, which 
included directing him or her to the appropriate professionals for advice and assistance eg 
mental health issues.     

Mr Oakley proposed certain amendments to the Corporate Plan. He referred to agenda 
item 10 for this meeting (Supporting New and Existing Small Businesses) and the 
Cabinet's decision on 9 January 2018 to extend the grants programme for retail 
businesses to the East Wittering Local Centre on the basis that it was equivalent in 
importance to the other town retail centres (he referred also to Local Plan Policy 29 and 
the supporting para 16.19 and the Site Allocations Development Plan Document paras 
1.15 and 6.4), in the light of which he sought the following amendments to the CP:

Page 7



Page 1 - Our Objectives

 Third bullet point and item 5: amend to read ‘Help improve our City’s, towns’ and 
local centres’ accessibility and attractiveness.’ 

 Fourth bullet point and item 3: amend to read ‘Promote the City, towns and local 
centres as vibrant places to do business’. 

Page 5 

 Item 5. title (in environments priority): amend to read ‘Help improve our City’s, 
towns’ and local centres’ accessibility and attractiveness.’

 Item 5. para 5.1 (in environments priority): amend by adding at the end after 
‘Midhurst’ ‘, as well as help improve the East Wittering local centre.’

 
Page 6 

 Objective 3 at top of page (local economy): amend to read ‘Promote the city, town 
centres and local centres as vibrant places to do business.’ 

Mrs Taylor seconded Mr Oakley’s proposed amendments.

Mr Dignum said that the amendments were very sensible and made the CP consistent with 
the Cabinet’s decision with respect to agenda item 10 to include a reference to ‘the East 
Wittering local centre’. He commended the amendments to the Council. 

At the end of the debate the Council voted by first of all on Mr Oakley’s amendments and 
these were approved on a show of hands unanimously.     
    
Decision

On a show of hands members present voted in favour of the Cabinet’s recommendations 
as amended aforesaid with none against and one abstention (Mr Plowman).  

The Cabinet’s recommendation was, therefore, carried.

RESOLVED

(1) That the revised Corporate Plan for 2018-2021 as set out in appendix 1 to the 
agenda report (as amended aforesaid) be approved.

(2) That £130,000 from Chichester District Council’s General Fund Reserve be 
approved to fund the two projects as set out in para 5.7 of the agenda report. 

10   Supporting New and Existing Small Businesses 

The Council considered the recommendation made to it by the Cabinet at its meeting on 
Tuesday 9 January 2018, as set out on the face of the Council agenda, the details in 
respect of which were contained in the Cabinet report (pages 35 to 39). 

Page 8



Mrs Hamilton pointed out that the recommendation stated that section 4.2 of the agenda 
report had been amended by the Cabinet and the details of the amendment were set out in 
a note on the Council agenda.   

Mr Dignum (Leader of the Cabinet) formally moved the Cabinet’s recommendation and this 
was seconded by Mrs Lintill (Cabinet Member for Community Services).

Mr Dignum introduced the report. The Cabinet had approved a series of projects to 
proceed using more than £300,000 made available through the Pooled Business Rates 
Fund for West Sussex in the form of grants to help small businesses and retailers across 
Chichester District and to support a scheme which helped people to find work. Two 
projects had been approved: Enabling Grant and Choose Work.  The third project before 
the Cabinet required the Council’s approval: Shop Front Improvement Grant and Provision 
of Retail Training. It would make available £168,800 to provide specialist retail training and 
shop front grants for independent high street retailers in Chichester, Midhurst, Petworth, 
Selsey and additionally, as agreed by the Cabinet, £32,000 from CDC reserves to be used 
on extending the scheme to the East Wittering local centre in view of its very significant 
retail presence of some 70 retail units. The scheme would begin with retail workshops 
focussing on converting footfall into sales, followed by individual improvement sessions 
and in-store training to ensure that all commercial opportunities were being identified and 
to address the significant changes within the retail sector in recent years. After the training, 
participating retailers would also be able to apply for a grant up to £4,000 towards the cost 
of refurbishing and improving their shop front. Midhurst and Selsey had set a precedent for 
what was anticipated to be a very popular scheme. 
    
Decision

On a show of hands members voted in favour of the Cabinet’s recommendation with none 
against and no abstentions.  

The Cabinet’s recommendation was, therefore, carried.

RESOLVED

That (a) the establishment of the Shop Front Improvement Grant Scheme and Provision of 
Retail Training for independent retailers as set out in sections 4.2 (as amended) and 4.3 to 
4.5 of the agenda report supported by £168,800 allocated from the Pooled Business Rates 
Fund and £32,000 from reserves be approved and (b) the Head of Commercial Services 
be authorised to approve shop front improvement grants under the Scheme.

11   Commissioning of West Sussex Community Advice Service 

The Council considered the recommendation made to it by the Cabinet at its meeting on 
Tuesday 9 January 2018, as set out on the face of the Council agenda, the details in 
respect of which were contained in the Cabinet report (pages 17 to 20). 

Mrs Lintill (Cabinet Member for Community Services) formally moved the Cabinet’s 
recommendation and this was seconded by Mr Dignum (Leader of the Cabinet).

Mrs Lintill summarised sections 3 and 5 of the agenda report and emphasised the 
importance of CDC continuing to support, subject to the funding arrangements, this very 
valuable service to all the county’s residents. It was very evident from the current usage 

Page 9



level and Arun and Chichester Citizen’s Advice’s (ACCA) recent relocation to East Pallant 
House (EPH) that there was a great need for this service. 

During the discussion Mrs Lintill responded to members’ questions and comments on 
points of detail with regard to (a) the numbers of clients now using ACCA in its new 
location in EPH (this would be ascertained) and (b) there was no indication that clients had 
complained or commented that the new location compromised confidentiality - there were 
separate consulting rooms to ensure privacy – or that they were choosing not to use the 
service at EPH. Members commended the excellent work done by ACCA.  
    
Decision

On a show of hands members voted in favour of the Cabinet’s recommendation with none 
against and no abstentions.  

The Cabinet’s recommendation was, therefore, carried.

RESOLVED

That the availability of £74,000 per annum for up to two years to achieve a bridging 
contract with the existing provider for the Community Advice Service be approved.

12   Revised Local Development Scheme 2018-2021 

The Council considered the recommendation made to it by the Cabinet at its meeting on 
Tuesday 9 January 2018, as set out on the face of the Council agenda supplement, the 
details in respect of which were contained in the Cabinet report (pages 25 to 28) and its 
appendix in the Cabinet agenda supplement (pages 33 to 43). 

Mrs Taylor (Cabinet Member for Planning Services) formally moved the Cabinet’s 
recommendation and this was seconded by Mrs Lintill (Cabinet Member for Community 
Services).

Mrs Taylor summarised the contents of the report with regard to the nature and purpose of 
the Local Development Scheme (LDS) and the reasons for having to make adjustments to 
the LDS timetable, namely potential legislative, policy and evidence-based studies 
changes and resourcing issues. She drew attention to an incorrect date in the Overview 
table in para 6.2 on page 39 of the agenda supplement: at the end of the first sentence in 
the second line of the Role and Subject field, ‘2034’ should in fact read ‘2035’ and this 
would be duly amended. The timetable changes would not prevent the Local plan Review 
being adopted by the July 2020 deadline.
    
Decision

On a show of hands members voted in favour of the Cabinet’s recommendation with none 
against and no abstentions.  

The Cabinet’s recommendation was, therefore, carried.

RESOLVED

That the revised Local Development Scheme 2018-2019 be approved.

Page 10



13   Site Allocations - Development Plan Document 2014-2029 - Proposed 
Modifications Consultation 

The Council considered the recommendation made to it by the Cabinet at its meeting on 
Tuesday 9 January 2018, as set out on the face of the Council agenda, the details in 
respect of which were contained in the Cabinet report (pages 29 to 31) and its two 
appendices in the Cabinet agenda supplement (pages 44 to 95). 

Mrs Taylor (Cabinet Member for Planning Services) formally moved the Cabinet’s 
recommendations and this was seconded by Mrs Lintill (Cabinet Member for Community 
Services).

Mrs Taylor summarised the report by explaining the nature and purpose of the Site 
Allocations Development Plan Document (DPD) and referring to the two categories of 
proposed modifications set out in the two appendices; the modifications but not the 
documents would be the subject of a forthcoming consultation. The planning inspector 
would consider all the representations received and, if necessary, hold further hearing 
sessions.  

Mrs Taylor responded to members’ questions and comments on points of detail with 
respect to (a) the current assessment underway into whether student housing numbers 
could be included in the five-year housing supply calculation (deleted from the MM11 entry 
in the table on page 59 of the agenda supplement); (b) the numbers in the DPD were the 
allocations in the current Chichester Local Plan: Key Policies 2014-2029 and were not new 
numbers; and (c) the consultation would make it clear that representations should be 
confined to the modifications only.   
    
Decision

On a show of hands members voted in favour of the Cabinet’s recommendation with none 
against and no abstentions.  

The Cabinet’s recommendation was, therefore, carried.

RESOLVED

(1) That the Site Allocation Development Plan Document Further Proposed Main 
Modifications (set out in appendix 1 to the agenda report) and the Further 
Proposed Minor Modifications (set out in appendix 2 to the agenda report) be 
approved for public consultation, subject to amending the heading to the 
document in appendix 1 by substituting ‘Proposed’ for ‘Inspector’s’.

(2) That authority be delegated to the Head of Planning Services, following 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Planning Services, to enable minor 
editorial and typographical amendments to be made to the document prior to 
publication.

14   Statement of Community Involvement 

The Council considered the recommendation made to it by the Cabinet at its meeting on 
Tuesday 9 January 2018, as set out on the face of the Council agenda, the details in 
respect of which were contained in the Cabinet report (pages 32 to 34), its two appendices 

Page 11



in the Cabinet agenda supplement (pages 96 to 112) and the replacement page 101 in 
appendix 1 to agenda report circulated with the Cabinet second agenda supplement. 

Mrs Taylor (Cabinet Member for Planning Services) formally moved the Cabinet’s 
recommendations and this was seconded by Mrs Lintill (Cabinet Member for Community 
Services).

Mrs Taylor summarised the contents of the report by explaining the nature and purpose of 
the Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) and the minor amendments made to the 
SCI as a result of a public consultation in 2017. She drew attention to the substituted page 
101 in appendix 1 which was circulated in the Cabinet second agenda supplement.

Mrs Taylor responded to members’ questions and comments on points of detail with 
respect to (a) the fact that later in 2018 CDC would have a task and finish group (TFG) 
consider current consultation processes should not hinder CDC from complying now with 
the statutory requirement to have an up-to-date SCI, although account would be taken of 
any recommendations by the TFG for any future SCI consultation; and (b) the second 
sentence in the fifth para in appendix 1 on page 104 of the agenda supplement would be 
amended by the insertion of the words ‘being examined’ to clarify which ‘document’ was 
meant.

Decision

On a show of hands members voted in favour of the Cabinet’s recommendation with none 
against and no abstentions.  

The Cabinet’s recommendation was, therefore, carried.

RESOLVED

That the Statement of Community Involvement, with (a) the diagram on page 101 of 
appendix 1 being replaced by the amended version in the second agenda supplement and 
(b) the addition of the words ‘being examined’ at the end of the second sentence of the 
fifth para on page 104 of appendix 1, be adopted. 

[Note At the end of this item there was a short adjournment of the Council meeting 
between 15:51 and 15:59]

15   Questions to the Executive 

The questions asked by members and the responses given were as follows:

Question by Mr Ransley: Neighbourhood Development Plans and the Five-Year Housing 
Land Supply  

Mr Ransley asked the following question, and he indicated that he would be content to 
receive a written response given the relevance of the matter he was raising for local 
communities, including Kirdford, which had brought or were bringing forward their 
neighbourhood development plans (NDP):

‘Given that it was confirmed at the last Council meeting that the ‘Secretary of State had 
routinely called in at the appeal stage all planning applications which affected a NDP’, is it 
equitable that CDC as a local planning authority undermines the housing policies of the 

Page 12



Kirdford NDP, by way of consideration of a potential, and I stress potential, shortfall in its 
five-year housing supply provision?

Are you not concerned that such direction to committee members introduces great weight 
leading to a resolution to compromise on a non-policy compliant planning application 
thereby setting aside any opportunity of the matter going to appeal?

Does this approach not represent a lower level of support for NDPs by CDC than that 
routinely afforded by the Secretary of State?’   

Response by Mrs Shepherd and Mrs Taylor

Mrs Shepherd (Chief Executive) said that it was not appropriate to seek to discuss in the 
Council meeting individual planning applications which had come or would be coming to 
the Planning Committee. Mrs Taylor (Cabinet Member for Planning Services) undertook 
to provide a written response to Mr Ransley and requested a copy of his question.      

Question by Mr Shaxson: Borrowing by Local Authorities to Build Council Houses

Mr Shaxson referred to the first objective in the first priority in the Corporate Plan 2018-
2021, namely: increase the supply of suitable housing in the right location. In view of the 
inability of registered social housing landlords in Chichester District being able to provide 
the required quantity and quality of such housing and also the relaxation by the 
government of the restrictions on councils borrowing to build council houses, he asked 
whether CDC was giving consideration to taking advantage of that opportunity.

Response by Mrs Kilby

Mrs Kilby (Cabinet Member for Housing Services) said that a task and finish group (TFG) 
was looking into the standard of housing in Chichester District but it had not as yet 
considered whether CDC should borrow or use funds to build council houses. Senior 
officers at CDC had met with their opposite numbers at Hyde for an initial discussion about 
current accommodation standards and how in partnership more social housing might be 
built. She hoped to be able to report back on the outcome of those deliberations in due 
course. She would discuss with her Cabinet colleagues and senior officers whether CDC 
should contemplate borrowing to build council housing. Once the TFG had addressed 
current areas of concern, it could address this specific issue.

Question by Mr Plowman: The Newly Opened Enterprise Centre

Mr Plowman referred to the very recently opened £6m Enterprise Centre (EC) in 
Terminus Road Chichester and sought reassurance about its ability to deliver the 
objectives set for it. So far, four of the 82 units were being considered. He wondered for 
how long the units had been marketed and how the other tenants would be secured. His 
concern was that the 275 new jobs which the EC would provide would very largely be 
taken by existing businesses relocating to the EC and leaving their current units vacant, 
thereby in effect resulting in few new jobs.   

Page 13



Response by Mr Dignum 

Mr Dignum (Leader of the Council) summarised the number and purpose of the units in 
the EC and the superb facilities provided in this very exciting development, which 
members would be able to visit for themselves on a special tour in due course. CDC had 
engaged specialist experts to advise on the marketing and operation of the EC, who 
typically achieved 90 to 95% occupancy rates for such centres. In the case of the EC, less 
than half of that trend figure was anticipated in the first year of operation but that ultimate 
occupancy rate was expected to be achieved by the third or fourth year. He cited 
examples of units in Havant and Shoreham to support his opinion that it was not unrealistic 
to attain such occupancy levels. An extremely good return on the £6m was expected, with 
a guaranteed base income of about a 5% return even if the 90 to 95% upper rate was not 
achieved. It was not necessarily the case that the EC would simply result in existing 
businesses relocating to the EC and leaving vacant their current premises: the economy 
was extremely buoyant and in fact two of the four units currently under consideration were 
being looked at by businesses outside Chichester District. He had no doubt about the 
prospects for the EC’s eventual success.        

Question by Mr Ransley: The Newly Opened Enterprise Centre

Mr Ransley commented that he thought it unlikely that the Enterprise Centre (EC) would 
lead to significant numbers of existing businesses seeking to move to the EC with a 
consequent glut of vacant premises given that such businesses would be committed to 
long leases. 

Response by Mr Dignum 

Mr Dignum (Leader of the Council) agreed with Mr Ransley’s assessment and pointed 
out that the month-at-a-time tenancy commitment at the EC would be attractive for new (or 
new to the area) small businesses. He was confident that after their visit to the EC 
members would share his confidence. 

Question by Mr Oakley: Tangmere Strategic Development Location Compulsory Purchase 
Order Update

Mr Oakley referred to the mention made by Mrs Taylor (Cabinet Member for Planning 
Services) at the previous Council meeting on 21 November 2017 of the Tangmere 
strategic development location (SDL) site in the context of CDC’s five-year housing land 
supply (FYHLS). He asked when an update report to members on progress was 
anticipated in view of the crucial importance of the site to CDC’s FYHLS. 

Response by Mrs Taylor and Mr Frost

Mrs Taylor (Cabinet Member for Planning Services) and Mr Frost (Head of Planning 
Services) advised that such a report would be considered by the Development Plan and 
Infrastructure Panel on 22 February 2018 and then the Cabinet and the Council on 6 
March 2018. It was currently intended to seek a compulsory purchase order resolution in, 
say, July 2018 if satisfactory progress had not previously been made.      

Page 14



Question by Mr Oakley: Treatment of Unspent Section 106 Interest Monies

Mr Oakley asked whether any so-called orphan section 106 interest, ie money which was 
left over after the principal contribution had been spent, should also be included in the New 
Homes Bonus Allocations scheme. Although this was likely to be a relatively small amount 
of money, a means needed to be found to spend it or else it would in all likelihood 
disappear into an accounting black hole, as at present its visibility in the section 106 ward 
reports was limited. He assumed that as it was interest earned while in CDC’s hands and 
since the principal sum had been spent, it could be safely retained by CDC and was not 
recoverable by the developer. He hoped that a mechanism could be devised for dealing 
with the unspent interest.  

Response by Mr Ward and Mr Dignum

Mr Ward (Head of Finance and Governance Services) said that interest earned on section 
106 monies should form part of the annual monitoring report which was presented to the 
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee. There was currently no mechanism for 
dealing with the unspent section 106 interest element eg by transfer to another account, 
and so it remained within the section 106 balance held by CDC. Mr Oakley had raised this 
point with officers prior to the Christmas 2017 holiday and at that time the total interest 
element on section 106 balances was £182,000, some of which related to ongoing section 
106 deposits which had not been spent. He was unable to say at the moment how much of 
that sum related to orphan interest but that money would be available for CDC to use. 
There was no requirement to set aside section 106 interest but CDC had decided to do so 
in 2011 partly in order to help offset the impact of inflation on section 106 monies, which 
might not be spent for several years, by adding interest while those monies were being 
held. Mr Dignum (Leader of the Council) added that he would ask Mr Ward and Mr Wilding 
to look into how to produce a mechanism for treating such interest. 

Question by Mrs Tull: Temporary Traffic Lights at the A27 Stockbridge Roundabout

Mrs Tull, who was supported in her remarks by Mr Plowman, expressed her great 
concern, shared by many people as revealed in the Chichester Observer, about the 
extremely dangerous risk posed to road users by the very confusing signage for the 
temporary traffic lights on the A27 at the Stockbridge roundabout, which was in place until 
March 2018. 

Response by Mr Dignum and Mr Ridd

Mr Dignum (Leader of the Cabinet) said that CDC Public Relations would be responding 
to a request by the Chichester Observer for him to comment on the situation in support of 
the complaints and he invited Mrs Tull to pass her remarks to him for consideration as part 
of his media response. This was matter for Highways England although West Sussex 
County Council (WSCC) as the highway authority was also involved.  Mr Ridd 
(Donnington) added that he was aware that the WSCC member for the Chichester South 
Division had been closely involved in addressing this issue given the potential for serious 
road traffic accidents created by these traffic lights.        
   
Question by Mr Morley: Enterprise Centre for North of the Downs

Mr Morley said that in view of the apparent lack of appetite to address employment-
related issues and the case for an enterprise centre in the South Downs National Park by 

Page 15



the South Downs National Park Authority (SDNPA), he wondered if CDC might look into 
the case for having one. 

Response by Mr Dignum

Mr Dignum (Leader of the Cabinet) said that one of the difficulties was identifying an 
appropriate site, which had not been allocated by the SDNPA. He felt that CDC should first 
of all prove the success of the newly-opened Enterprise Centre in Terminus Road before 
looking further afield. Midhurst, Petworth, Selsey and East Wittering would be the obvious 
candidates for consideration.   

Question by Mr Dunn: Inspection of Industrial Estates in Westbourne and Southbourne

Mr Dunn invited Mr Dignum to make a visit to (a) a large industrial estate in Cemetery 
Lane Westbourne which did not have the benefit of planning permission and (b) a very 
successful industrial estate in Southbourne. 

Response by Mr Dignum

Mr Dignum (Leader of the Cabinet) said that the Westbourne site should be referred in the 
first instance to CDC’s Development Management section and he would be happy for Mr 
Dunn to show him the Southbourne site.    

[Note End of Questions to the Executive]

16   Amended Appointments to Committees 2017-2018 

The Council considered the report circulated with the agenda for this meeting.

Mrs Hamilton said that the report was short and self-explanatory and she proposed that its 
recommendations should be accepted. Her proposal was seconded by Mrs Graves.

In reply to a member’s question about whether Cabinet members were precluded from 
sitting on CDC committees, Mrs Shepherd advised that this was not the case in principle 
(save for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee) or in practice, for example the Corporate 
Governance and Audit Committee, and that the position for each committee was governed 
by CDC’s Constitution.   

Decision

On a show of hands members voted unanimously to make the appointments in the 
resolution below, with none against and no abstentions.  

RESOLVED

That the following two appointments be approved: 

(1) Mrs S Taylor replaces Mr N Thomas on the General Licensing Committee and the 
Alcohol and Entertainment Licensing Committee. 

(2) Mr M Dunn replaces Mrs J Tassell on the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

Page 16



17   Planning Policy Team Resources 

The Council considered the report circulated with the agenda for this meeting.

Mrs Hamilton pointed out that the agenda report for this item was for the Council only to 
note the urgent decision made to recruit two new principal planning officer posts and one 
additional planning officer post to the Planning Policy team prior to the annual budget-
setting process being considered by the Cabinet and the Council.

The report was presented by Mrs Taylor (Cabinet Member for Planning Services), who 
explained the position by summarising sections 3, 4, 6 and 8.   

In reply to a member’s question about what response had been received to any 
advertisement yet placed, Mrs Taylor said that one officer had been appointed and the 
other two posts were being publicised.   

On behalf of the Council Mrs Hamilton confirmed the formal noting of the urgent decision 
which had been made to recruit two new principal planning officer posts and one additional 
planning officer post to the Planning Policy team prior to the annual budget-setting process 
being considered by the Cabinet and the Council. 

18   Late Items 

There were no late items for consideration at this meeting.

19   Exclusion of the Press and Public 

There were no restricted Part II items for consideration at this meeting.

[Note The meeting ended at 16:25]

CHAIRMAN DATE

Page 17



Chichester District Council

THE COUNCIL 6 March 2018

Council Tax Resolution

1. Contacts

Cabinet Member:
Peter Wilding - Cabinet Member for Corporate Services 
Telephone: 01428 707324 E-mail: pwilding@chichester.gov.uk.com

Report Authors:
John Ward - Head of Finance and Governance, 
Telephone: 01243 534805 E-mail: jward@chichester.gov.uk

Mark Catlow - Group Accountant 
Telephone: 01243 521076 E-mail: mcatlow@chichester.gov.uk

2. Recommendation 

2.1. That following consideration of the draft budget by the Cabinet the 
Budget for 2018-2019 be approved as follows:

i. The 2018-2019 Net Revenue Budget in respect of Chichester 
District Council’s own services be approved at £13,025,600.

ii. The 2018-19 Council Tax Requirement in respect of Chichester 
District Council’s own services be approved at £8,227,400.

iii. A Council Tax of £155.81 (Band D equivalent) be approved.  This 
represents a £5.00 (3.32 %) increase on the Band D charge.

iv. The Investment Opportunities Reserve be increased by £861,300.

2.2. That the Council approves the Resolutions in Appendix A.

3. Main Report

3.1 Introduction 

3.1.1 The Cabinet at its meeting on 6 February 2018 recommended that Council 
approve a £5.00 Council Tax increase for 2018-19.  The purpose of this report 
is to enable Council to make the necessary resolutions in relation to the 
setting of Council Tax for 2018-19.

3.1.2 Since the February Cabinet meeting the final local government settlement has 
been announced. This included a small increase in overall funding of £41,100. 
In accordance with the cabinet recommendations, this has been dealt with by 
increasing the Investment Opportunity Reserve contribution, which has 
increased from £820,200 to £861,300.

3.1.3 Section 30(1) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 requires the Council 
to set an amount of Council Tax each financial year for each category of 

Page 18

Agenda Item 6

mailto:pwilding@chichester.gov.uk.com
mailto:jward@chichester.gov.uk
mailto:mcatlow@chichester.gov.uk


dwelling in its area.  Chichester District Council, as a billing authority for the 
purposes of Council Tax, is required to set its Council Tax before 11 March in 
the financial year preceding that for which the Council Tax is set.

3.1.4 These amounts are based on the Council’s own budget, plus precepts from 
Parish Councils where applicable, plus shares of the budget for West Sussex 
County Council and The Police and Crime Commissioner for Sussex, all 
divided by the tax base.  At its meeting on 5 December 2017, the Cabinet 
approved the tax base for the Chichester District and for each of the 
Parish/Town Council areas for 2018-19 totalling 52,804.3 Band D equivalents.  

3.1.5 For the purpose of calculating council tax, dwellings are allocated to valuation 
bands and the amount of Council Tax paid for dwellings in each band is 
calculated using nationally set weightings for each band.

3.1.6 Since the February meeting of Cabinet, the precept levels of the other 
precepting bodies have been received.  These are detailed as follows:

Parish and Town Councils

The Parish and Town Council precepts for 2018-19 are detailed in Appendix 
C and total £3,070,811.  The increase in the average Band D Council Tax for 
Parish and Town Councils is 2.55% and results in an average Band D Council 
Tax figure of £58.15 for 2018-19

West Sussex County Council

West Sussex County Council met on 16 February 2018 and set their precept 
at £69,584,450.45. This results in a Band D Council Tax of £1,317.78, a 
4.95% increase on the previous year.  

The Police and Crime Commissioner for Sussex

The Police and Crime Commissioner for Sussex met on 7 February 2018 and 
set their precept at £8,760,761.41.  This results in a Band D Council Tax of 
£165.91, an increase of 7.80% on the previous year.  

3.2 Explanatory Note

3.2.1 The Act specifies the calculations required and the resolution is structured to 
meet those requirements.  The resolution is divided into the following 
sections:

a) Council Tax Base (Resolution 1)

This resolution stipulates the Council Tax Base for the forthcoming 
financial year, as agreed by the Cabinet at its meeting on 5 December 
2017.

b) Council Tax Requirement (Resolution 2)

This resolution sets the Councils own Council Tax Requirement for the 
purpose of setting council tax.  It represents the amount of council tax 
that the Council must collect from the council tax payers in its area to 
fund the budget for its own activities for the forthcoming year.  

Page 19



The Council Tax Requirement is calculated by taking the Council’s Net 
Revenue Budget for 2018-19 of £13,025,600, and deducting the 
aggregate of the amount of support the Council receives from the 
government in the form of the Formula Grant and other Non-specific 
Grants, and transfers to or from the Collection Fund.  

c) Basic Amount of Council Tax (Resolution 3)

This resolution sets the Basic Amount of Council Tax for each part of 
the Council’s area.  These amounts are based on precepts from parish 
councils in addition to the budget for the Council’s own activities and 
hence the Basic Amount of Council Tax differs between parts of the 
Council’s area.  

d) Precepts of Major Precepting Authorities (Resolution 4)

As a billing authority, the Council also collects council tax in its area on 
behalf of West Sussex County Council and The Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Sussex.  The amount that they precept is based on 
their Council Tax Requirement, divided between West Sussex districts 
and boroughs in proportion to the number of Band D equivalent 
dwellings in each district/borough area. 

e) Setting of Council Tax (Resolution 5)

This resolution sets out the total amount of council tax payable for each 
category of dwelling and for each part of the Council’s area, including 
the basic amount for each part of the Council’s area plus the amounts 
precepted by West Sussex County Council and The Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Sussex. 

f) Excessive Council Tax Increases (Resolution 6)

The Localism Act 2011 abolished the council tax capping regime in 
England and introduced a new chapter into the Local Government 
Finance 1992 Act, making provision for council tax referendums to be 
held if an authority increases its council tax by an amount exceeding 
principles determined by the Secretary of State and agreed by the 
House of Commons.

Under Section 52ZC of the 1992 Act, the principles for 2018-19 are, 
that authorities such as Chichester (i.e. any shire district council) are 
required to seek approval from their electorate in a referendum if, 
compared with 2017-18, they set a council tax increase of above £5.00 
and which also represents 3% or greater increase year on year.  

Section 52ZB of the 1992 Act requires the Council to determine 
whether its Relevant Basic Amount of Council Tax is excessive in 
accordance with these principles.  

Page 20



    
4. Background Papers

4.1. Budget Spending Plans Report submitted to the Cabinet on 6 February 2018.

5. Appendices

Appendix A Council Tax Resolutions
Appendix B Council Tax charges 2018-19
Appendix C Town and Parish Council precepts

Page 21



Appendix A
 

Chichester District Council

COUNCIL TAX RESOLUTION                    

The Council is recommended to resolve as follows:

1. It be noted that on 5 December 2017, the Council calculated the Council Tax Base 
2018-19

a) for the whole Council area as 52,804.3 [Item T in the formula in Section 31B 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended (the “Act”)]; and

b) for dwellings in those parts of its area to which a Parish precept relates as in 
the attached Appendix C.

2. That the Council Tax requirement for the Council’s own purposes for 2018-19 
(excluding Parish precepts) is £8,227,400.

3. That the following amounts be calculated by the Council for the year 2018-19 in 
accordance with Sections 31 to 36 of the Act:

a) £89,807,611 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 
estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(2) of the Act 
taking into account all precepts issued to it by Parish 
Councils.

 
b) £78,509,600 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 

estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(3) of the Act.
 

c) £11,298,211 being the amount by which the aggregate at 3(a) above 
exceeds the aggregate at 3(b) above, calculated by the 
Council in accordance with Section 31A (4) of the Act, as its 
Council Tax requirement for the year. (Item R), in the formula 
in Section 31B of the Act). 

d) £213.96 being the amount at 3(c) above (Item R), all divided by Item T 
(1(a) above), calculated by the Council in accordance with 
Section 31B of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council 
Tax for the year (including Parish precepts).

e) £3,070,811   being the aggregate amount of all special items (Parish 
precepts) referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act (as per the 
attached Appendix C).

f) £155.81 being the amount at 3(d) above less the result given by 
dividing the amount at 3(e) above by Item T (1(a) above), 

Page 22



calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 34(2) 
of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the 
year.

 
4. That it be noted that for the year 2018-19 the West Sussex County Council and The  

Police and Crime Commissioner for Sussex have issued precepts to the Council in 
accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 for each 
category of dwellings in the Council’s area as indicated in the tables below

West Sussex County Council

The Police and Crime Commissioner for Sussex

5. That the Council, in accordance with Sections 30 and 36 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the amounts shown in Appendix B as the amounts of 
Council Tax for the year 2018-19 for each part of its area and for each of the 
categories of dwellings.

6. That the Council hereby determines in accordance with Section 52ZB of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992, that its relevant basic amount of Council Tax for 2018-
19 is not excessive in accordance with the principles approved by the Secretary of 
State under Section 52ZC of the Local Government Finance Act 1992.  As the billing 
authority, the Council has not been notified by a major precepting authority that its 
relevant basic amount of Council Tax for 2018-19 is excessive and that the billing 
authority is not required to hold a referendum in accordance with Section 52ZK of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992. 

J. Ward 
Head of Finance and Governance

A B C D E F G HValuation Band

878.52 1,024.94 1,171.36 1,317.78 1,610.62 1,903.46 2,196.30 2,635.56

A B C D E F G HValuation Band

Amount £ 110.61 129.04 147.48 165.91 202.78 239.65 276.52 331.82

Page 23



Appendix B

Council Tax charges 2018-19

BAND BAND BAND BAND BAND BAND BAND BAND
A B C D E F G H
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Chichester District Council 103.87 121.19 138.50 155.81 190.43 225.06 259.68 311.62

West Sussex County Council 878.52 1,024.94 1,171.36 1,317.78 1,610.62 1,903.46 2,196.30 2,635.56

The Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Sussex 110.61 129.04 147.48 165.91 202.78 239.65 276.52 331.82

        

Town / Parish only (a)
Town / Parish and District (b)

Total including major precepting 
authorities (c)

        

(a) 26.31 30.70 35.08 39.47 48.24 57.01 65.78 78.94
(b) 130.18 151.89 173.58 195.28 238.67 282.07 325.46 390.56Appledram

(c) 1,119.31 1,305.87 1,492.42 1,678.97 2,052.07 2,425.18 2,798.28 3,357.94
(a) 27.32 31.87 36.43 40.98 50.09 59.19 68.30 81.96
(b) 131.19 153.06 174.93 196.79 240.52 284.25 327.98 393.58Barlavington

(c) 1,120.32 1,307.04 1,493.77 1,680.48 2,053.92 2,427.36 2,800.80 3,360.96
(a) 21.71 25.32 28.94 32.56 39.80 47.03 54.27 65.12Bepton
(b) 125.58 146.51 167.44 188.37 230.23 272.09 313.95 376.74

P
age 24



(c) 1,114.71 1,300.49 1,486.28 1,672.06 2,043.63 2,415.20 2,786.77 3,344.12
(a) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(b) 103.87 121.19 138.50 155.81 190.43 225.06 259.68 311.62Bignor 

(c) 1,093.00 1,275.17 1,457.34 1,639.50 2,003.83 2,368.17 2,732.50 3,279.00
(a) 39.04 45.55 52.05 58.56 71.57 84.59 97.60 117.12
(b) 142.91 166.74 190.55 214.37 262.00 309.65 357.28 428.74Birdham

(c) 1,132.04 1,320.72 1,509.39 1,698.06 2,075.40 2,452.76 2,830.10 3,396.12
(a) 25.42 29.66 33.89 38.13 46.60 55.08 63.55 76.26
(b) 129.29 150.85 172.39 193.94 237.03 280.14 323.23 387.88Bosham

(c) 1,118.42 1,304.83 1,491.23 1,677.63 2,050.43 2,423.25 2,796.05 3,355.26
(a) 50.50 58.92 67.33 75.75 92.58 109.42 126.25 151.50
(b) 154.37 180.11 205.83 231.56 283.01 334.48 385.93 463.12Boxgrove

(c) 1,143.50 1,334.09 1,524.67 1,715.25 2,096.41 2,477.59 2,858.75 3,430.50
(a) 45.10 52.62 60.13 67.65 82.68 97.72 112.75 135.30
(b) 148.97 173.81 198.63 223.46 273.11 322.78 372.43 446.92Bury

(c) 1,138.10 1,327.79 1,517.47 1,707.15 2,086.51 2,465.89 2,845.25 3,414.30
(a) 33.17 38.70 44.23 49.76 60.82 71.88 82.93 99.52

(b) 144.56 168.66 192.75 216.84 265.02 313.21 361.40 433.68Chichester City

(c) 1,133.69 1,322.64 1,511.59 1,700.53 2,078.42 2,456.32 2,834.22 3,401.06

(a) 32.08 37.43 42.77 48.12 58.81 69.51 80.20 96.24

(b) 135.95 158.62 181.27 203.93 249.24 294.57 339.88 407.86Chidham and Hambrook

(c) 1,125.08 1,312.60 1,500.11 1,687.62 2,062.64 2,437.68 2,812.70 3,375.24

(a) 40.69 47.47 54.25 61.03 74.59 88.15 101.72 122.06
(b) 144.56 168.66 192.75 216.84 265.02 313.21 361.40 433.68Cocking

(c) 1,133.69 1,322.64 1,511.59 1,700.53 2,078.42 2,456.32 2,834.22 3,401.06
(a) 37.11 43.29 49.48 55.66 68.03 80.40 92.77 111.32
(b) 140.98 164.48 187.98 211.47 258.46 305.46 352.45 422.94Compton

(c) 1,130.11 1,318.46 1,506.82 1,695.16 2,071.86 2,448.57 2,825.27 3,390.32
Donnington (a) 15.57 18.17 20.76 23.36 28.55 33.74 38.93 46.72

P
age 25



(b) 119.44 139.36 159.26 179.17 218.98 258.80 298.61 358.34
(c) 1,108.57 1,293.34 1,478.10 1,662.86 2,032.38 2,401.91 2,771.43 3,325.72
(a) 25.49 29.74 33.99 38.24 46.74 55.24 63.73 76.48
(b) 129.36 150.93 172.49 194.05 237.17 280.30 323.41 388.10Duncton

(c) 1,118.49 1,304.91 1,491.33 1,677.74 2,050.57 2,423.41 2,796.23 3,355.48
(a) 31.85 37.16 42.47 47.78 58.40 69.02 79.63 95.56
(b) 135.72 158.35 180.97 203.59 248.83 294.08 339.31 407.18Earnley

(c) 1,124.85 1,312.33 1,499.81 1,687.28 2,062.23 2,437.19 2,812.13 3,374.56
(a) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(b) 103.87 121.19 138.50 155.81 190.43 225.06 259.68 311.62Eartham

(c) 1,093.00 1,275.17 1,457.34 1,639.50 2,003.83 2,368.17 2,732.50 3,279.00
(a) 28.67 33.44 38.22 43.00 52.56 62.11 71.67 86.00
(b) 132.54 154.63 176.72 198.81 242.99 287.17 331.35 397.62Easebourne 

(c) 1,121.67 1,308.61 1,495.56 1,682.50 2,056.39 2,430.28 2,804.17 3,365.00
(a) 6.69 7.81 8.92 10.04 12.27 14.50 16.73 20.08
(b) 110.56 129.00 147.42 165.85 202.70 239.56 276.41 331.70East Dean 

(c) 1,099.69 1,282.98 1,466.26 1,649.54 2,016.10 2,382.67 2,749.23 3,299.08
(a) 17.95 20.94 23.93 26.92 32.90 38.88 44.87 53.84
(b) 121.82 142.13 162.43 182.73 223.33 263.94 304.55 365.46East Lavington

(c) 1,110.95 1,296.11 1,481.27 1,666.42 2,036.73 2,407.05 2,777.37 3,332.84
(a) 44.80 52.27 59.73 67.20 82.13 97.07 112.00 134.40
(b) 148.67 173.46 198.23 223.01 272.56 322.13 371.68 446.02East Wittering and Bracklesham

(c) 1,137.80 1,327.44 1,517.07 1,706.70 2,085.96 2,465.24 2,844.50 3,413.40
(a) 9.33 10.88 12.44 13.99 17.10 20.21 23.32 27.98
(b) 113.20 132.07 150.94 169.80 207.53 245.27 283.00 339.60Ebernoe

(c) 1,102.33 1,286.05 1,469.78 1,653.49 2,020.93 2,388.38 2,755.82 3,306.98
(a) 11.97 13.96 15.96 17.95 21.94 25.93 29.92 35.90
(b) 115.84 135.15 154.46 173.76 212.37 250.99 289.60 347.52Elsted and Treyford

(c) 1,104.97 1,289.13 1,473.30 1,657.45 2,025.77 2,394.10 2,762.42 3,314.90

P
age 26



(a) 36.38 42.44 48.51 54.57 66.70 78.82 90.95 109.14
(b) 140.25 163.63 187.01 210.38 257.13 303.88 350.63 420.76Fernhurst

(c) 1,129.38 1,317.61 1,505.85 1,694.07 2,070.53 2,446.99 2,823.45 3,388.14
(a) 26.57 31.00 35.43 39.86 48.72 57.58 66.43 79.72
(b) 130.44 152.19 173.93 195.67 239.15 282.64 326.11 391.34Fishbourne 

(c) 1,119.57 1,306.17 1,492.77 1,679.36 2,052.55 2,425.75 2,798.93 3,358.72
(a) 24.10 28.12 32.13 36.15 44.18 52.22 60.25 72.30
(b) 127.97 149.31 170.63 191.96 234.61 277.28 319.93 383.92Fittleworth 

(c) 1,117.10 1,303.29 1,489.47 1,675.65 2,048.01 2,420.39 2,792.75 3,351.30
(a) 16.68 19.46 22.24 25.02 30.58 36.14 41.70 50.04
(b) 120.55 140.65 160.74 180.83 221.01 261.20 301.38 361.66Funtington

(c) 1,109.68 1,294.63 1,479.58 1,664.52 2,034.41 2,404.31 2,774.20 3,329.04
(a) 26.38 30.78 35.17 39.57 48.36 57.16 65.95 79.14
(b) 130.25 151.97 173.67 195.38 238.79 282.22 325.63 390.76Graffham

(c) 1,119.38 1,305.95 1,492.51 1,679.07 2,052.19 2,425.33 2,798.45 3,358.14
(a) 40.25 46.95 53.66 60.37 73.79 87.20 100.62 120.74
(b) 144.12 168.14 192.16 216.18 264.22 312.26 360.30 432.36Harting

(c) 1,133.25 1,322.12 1,511.00 1,699.87 2,077.62 2,455.37 2,833.12 3,399.74
(a) 21.54 25.13 28.72 32.31 39.49 46.67 53.85 64.62
(b) 125.41 146.32 167.22 188.12 229.92 271.73 313.53 376.24Heyshott

(c) 1,114.54 1,300.30 1,486.06 1,671.81 2,043.32 2,414.84 2,786.35 3,343.62
(a) 89.06 103.90 118.75 133.59 163.28 192.96 222.65 267.18
(b) 192.93 225.09 257.25 289.40 353.71 418.02 482.33 578.80Hunston

(c) 1,182.06 1,379.07 1,576.09 1,773.09 2,167.11 2,561.13 2,955.15 3,546.18
(a) 97.25 113.46 129.67 145.88 178.30 210.72 243.13 291.76
(b) 201.12 234.65 268.17 301.69 368.73 435.78 502.81 603.38Kirdford  

(c) 1,190.25 1,388.63 1,587.01 1,785.38 2,182.13 2,578.89 2,975.63 3,570.76
(a) 27.70 32.32 36.93 41.55 50.78 60.02 69.25 83.10Lavant
(b) 131.57 153.51 175.43 197.36 241.21 285.08 328.93 394.72

P
age 27



(c) 1,120.70 1,307.49 1,494.27 1,681.05 2,054.61 2,428.19 2,801.75 3,362.10
(a) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(b) 103.87 121.19 138.50 155.81 190.43 225.06 259.68 311.62Linch 

(c) 1,093.00 1,275.17 1,457.34 1,639.50 2,003.83 2,368.17 2,732.50 3,279.00
(a) 45.73 53.36 60.98 68.60 83.84 99.09 114.33 137.20
(b) 149.60 174.55 199.48 224.41 274.27 324.15 374.01 448.82Lynchmere 

(c) 1,138.73 1,328.53 1,518.32 1,708.10 2,087.67 2,467.26 2,846.83 3,416.20
(a) 29.45 34.35 39.26 44.17 53.99 63.80 73.62 88.34
(b) 133.32 155.54 177.76 199.98 244.42 288.86 333.30 399.96Lodsworth

(c) 1,122.45 1,309.52 1,496.60 1,683.67 2,057.82 2,431.97 2,806.12 3,367.34
(a) 36.30 42.35 48.40 54.45 66.55 78.65 90.75 108.90
(b) 140.17 163.54 186.90 210.26 256.98 303.71 350.43 420.52Loxwood

(c) 1,129.30 1,317.52 1,505.74 1,693.95 2,070.38 2,446.82 2,823.25 3,387.90
(a) 38.75 45.20 51.66 58.12 71.04 83.95 96.87 116.24
(b) 142.62 166.39 190.16 213.93 261.47 309.01 356.55 427.86Lurgashall

(c) 1,131.75 1,320.37 1,509.00 1,697.62 2,074.87 2,452.12 2,829.37 3,395.24
(a) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(b) 103.87 121.19 138.50 155.81 190.43 225.06 259.68 311.62Marden

(c) 1,093.00 1,275.17 1,457.34 1,639.50 2,003.83 2,368.17 2,732.50 3,279.00
(a) 56.53 65.95 75.37 84.79 103.63 122.47 141.32 169.58
(b) 160.40 187.14 213.87 240.60 294.06 347.53 401.00 481.20Midhurst Town

(c) 1,149.53 1,341.12 1,532.71 1,724.29 2,107.46 2,490.64 2,873.82 3,448.58
(a) 46.22 53.92 61.63 69.33 84.74 100.14 115.55 138.66
(b) 150.09 175.11 200.13 225.14 275.17 325.20 375.23 450.28Milland

(c) 1,139.22 1,329.09 1,518.97 1,708.83 2,088.57 2,468.31 2,848.05 3,417.66
(a) 40.11 46.80 53.48 60.17 73.54 86.91 100.28 120.34
(b) 143.98 167.99 191.98 215.98 263.97 311.97 359.96 431.96North Mundham

(c) 1,133.11 1,321.97 1,510.82 1,699.67 2,077.37 2,455.08 2,832.78 3,399.34
Northchapel (a) 58.53 68.29 78.04 87.80 107.31 126.82 146.33 175.60

P
age 28



(b) 162.40 189.48 216.54 243.61 297.74 351.88 406.01 487.22
(c) 1,151.53 1,343.46 1,535.38 1,727.30 2,111.14 2,494.99 2,878.83 3,454.60
(a) 51.79 60.42 69.05 77.68 94.94 112.20 129.47 155.36
(b) 155.66 181.61 207.55 233.49 285.37 337.26 389.15 466.98Oving

(c) 1,144.79 1,335.59 1,526.39 1,717.18 2,098.77 2,480.37 2,861.97 3,434.36
(a) 61.38 71.61 81.84 92.07 112.53 132.99 153.45 184.14
(b) 165.25 192.80 220.34 247.88 302.96 358.05 413.13 495.76Petworth

(c) 1,154.38 1,346.78 1,539.18 1,731.57 2,116.36 2,501.16 2,885.95 3,463.14
(a) 36.76 42.89 49.01 55.14 67.39 79.65 91.90 110.28
(b) 140.63 164.08 187.51 210.95 257.82 304.71 351.58 421.90Plaistow and Ifold

(c) 1,129.76 1,318.06 1,506.35 1,694.64 2,071.22 2,447.82 2,824.40 3,389.28
(a) 26.35 30.75 35.14 39.53 48.31 57.10 65.88 79.06
(b) 130.22 151.94 173.64 195.34 238.74 282.16 325.56 390.68Rogate

(c) 1,119.35 1,305.92 1,492.48 1,679.03 2,052.14 2,425.27 2,798.38 3,358.06
(a) 53.67 62.61 71.56 80.50 98.39 116.28 134.17 161.00
(b) 157.54 183.80 210.06 236.31 288.82 341.34 393.85 472.62Selsey Town  

(c) 1,146.67 1,337.78 1,528.90 1,720.00 2,102.22 2,484.45 2,866.67 3,440.00
(a) 32.91 38.39 43.88 49.36 60.33 71.30 82.27 98.72
(b) 136.78 159.58 182.38 205.17 250.76 296.36 341.95 410.34Sidlesham 

(c) 1,125.91 1,313.56 1,501.22 1,688.86 2,064.16 2,439.47 2,814.77 3,377.72
(a) 38.87 45.35 51.83 58.31 71.27 84.23 97.18 116.62
(b) 142.74 166.54 190.33 214.12 261.70 309.29 356.86 428.24Singleton

(c) 1,131.87 1,320.52 1,509.17 1,697.81 2,075.10 2,452.40 2,829.68 3,395.62
(a) 38.62 45.06 51.49 57.93 70.80 83.68 96.55 115.86
(b) 142.49 166.25 189.99 213.74 261.23 308.74 356.23 427.48Southbourne

(c) 1,131.62 1,320.23 1,508.83 1,697.43 2,074.63 2,451.85 2,829.05 3,394.86
(a) 32.24 37.61 42.99 48.36 59.11 69.85 80.60 96.72
(b) 136.11 158.80 181.49 204.17 249.54 294.91 340.28 408.34Stedham with Iping

(c) 1,125.24 1,312.78 1,500.33 1,687.86 2,062.94 2,438.02 2,813.10 3,375.72

P
age 29



(a) 21.69 25.31 28.92 32.54 39.77 47.00 54.23 65.08
(b) 125.56 146.50 167.42 188.35 230.20 272.06 313.91 376.70Stopham

(c) 1,114.69 1,300.48 1,486.26 1,672.04 2,043.60 2,415.17 2,786.73 3,344.08
(a) 17.66 20.60 23.55 26.49 32.38 38.26 44.15 52.98
(b) 121.53 141.79 162.05 182.30 222.81 263.32 303.83 364.60Stoughton

(c) 1,110.66 1,295.77 1,480.89 1,665.99 2,036.21 2,406.43 2,776.65 3,331.98
(a) 27.32 31.87 36.43 40.98 50.09 59.19 68.30 81.96
(b) 131.19 153.06 174.93 196.79 240.52 284.25 327.98 393.58Sutton

(c) 1,120.32 1,307.04 1,493.77 1,680.48 2,053.92 2,427.36 2,800.80 3,360.96
(a) 36.29 42.34 48.39 54.44 66.54 78.64 90.73 108.88
(b) 140.16 163.53 186.89 210.25 256.97 303.70 350.41 420.50Tangmere

(c) 1,129.29 1,317.51 1,505.73 1,693.94 2,070.37 2,446.81 2,823.23 3,387.88
(a) 35.85 41.83 47.80 53.78 65.73 77.68 89.63 107.56
(b) 139.72 163.02 186.30 209.59 256.16 302.74 349.31 419.18Tillington 

(c) 1,128.85 1,317.00 1,505.14 1,693.28 2,069.56 2,445.85 2,822.13 3,386.56
(a) 12.95 15.10 17.26 19.42 23.74 28.05 32.37 38.84
(b) 116.82 136.29 155.76 175.23 214.17 253.11 292.05 350.46Trotton with Chithurst

(c) 1,105.95 1,290.27 1,474.60 1,658.92 2,027.57 2,396.22 2,764.87 3,317.84
(a) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(b) 103.87 121.19 138.50 155.81 190.43 225.06 259.68 311.62Upwaltham

(c) 1,093.00 1,275.17 1,457.34 1,639.50 2,003.83 2,368.17 2,732.50 3,279.00
(a) 37.56 43.82 50.08 56.34 68.86 81.38 93.90 112.68
(b) 141.43 165.01 188.58 212.15 259.29 306.44 353.58 424.30West Dean 

(c) 1,130.56 1,318.99 1,507.42 1,695.84 2,072.69 2,449.55 2,826.40 3,391.68
(a) 38.20 44.57 50.93 57.30 70.03 82.77 95.50 114.60
(b) 142.07 165.76 189.43 213.11 260.46 307.83 355.18 426.22West Itchenor

(c) 1,131.20 1,319.74 1,508.27 1,696.80 2,073.86 2,450.94 2,828.00 3,393.60
(a) 10.11 11.80 13.48 15.17 18.54 21.91 25.28 30.34West Lavington
(b) 113.98 132.99 151.98 170.98 208.97 246.97 284.96 341.96

P
age 30



(c) 1,103.11 1,286.97 1,470.82 1,654.67 2,022.37 2,390.08 2,757.78 3,309.34
(a) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(b) 103.87 121.19 138.50 155.81 190.43 225.06 259.68 311.62West Thorney

(c) 1,093.00 1,275.17 1,457.34 1,639.50 2,003.83 2,368.17 2,732.50 3,279.00
(a) 38.27 44.64 51.02 57.40 70.16 82.91 95.67 114.80
(b) 142.14 165.83 189.52 213.21 260.59 307.97 355.35 426.42West Wittering 

(c) 1,131.27 1,319.81 1,508.36 1,696.90 2,073.99 2,451.08 2,828.17 3,393.80
(a) 57.37 66.94 76.50 86.06 105.18 124.31 143.43 172.12
(b) 161.24 188.13 215.00 241.87 295.61 349.37 403.11 483.74Westbourne 

(c) 1,150.37 1,342.11 1,533.84 1,725.56 2,109.01 2,492.48 2,875.93 3,451.12
(a) 67.31 78.52 89.74 100.96 123.40 145.83 168.27 201.92
(b) 171.18 199.71 228.24 256.77 313.83 370.89 427.95 513.54Westhampnett 

(c) 1,160.31 1,353.69 1,547.08 1,740.46 2,127.23 2,514.00 2,900.77 3,480.92
(a) 51.86 60.50 69.15 77.79 95.08 112.36 129.65 155.58
(b) 155.73 181.69 207.65 233.60 285.51 337.42 389.33 467.20Wisborough Green 

(c) 1,144.86 1,335.67 1,526.49 1,717.29 2,098.91 2,480.53 2,862.15 3,434.58
(a) 34.25 39.95 45.66 51.37 62.79 74.20 85.62 102.74
(b) 138.12 161.14 184.16 207.18 253.22 299.26 345.30 414.36Woolbeding with Redford

(c) 1,127.25 1,315.12 1,503.00 1,690.87 2,066.62 2,442.37 2,818.12 3,381.74

P
age 31



Appendix C

Town and Parish Council Precepts

 2017/18 2018/19

Parish / Town Council Tax
Base

Precepts
£

Council 
Tax

Band D 
(£)

Tax
Base

Precepts
£

Council 
Tax

Band D 
(£)

Council 
Tax

Increase 
%

Appledram 90.1 1,800 19.98 91.2 3,600 39.47 97.55%
Barlavington 54.8 2,203 40.2 55.5 2,274 40.98 1.94%
Bepton 148.3 4,820 32.5 151.0 4,916 32.56 0.18%
Bignor 72.7 0 0.00 70.9 0 0.00 0.00%
Birdham 801.8 45,858 57.19 818.1 47,906 58.56 2.40%
Bosham 1,627.0 60,000 36.88 1,626.0 62,000 38.13 3.39%
Boxgrove 436.6 31,324 71.75 435.5 32,990 75.75 5.57%
Bury 368.4 25,173 68.33 372.1 25,173 67.65 -1.00%
Chichester City 10,715.1 533,235 49.76 10,902.0 542,453 49.76 0.00%
Chidham and Hambrook 920.3 42,855 46.57 940.4 45,255 48.12 3.33%
Cocking 214.3 13,000 60.66 213.0 13,000 61.03 0.61%
Compton 224.7 12,400 55.18 222.8 12,400 55.66 0.87%
Donnington 1,007.7 24,752 24.56 1,020.5 23,836 23.36 -4.89%
Duncton 227.6 8,480 37.26 230.1 8,800 38.24 2.63%
Earnley 378.9 15,209 40.14 375.2 17,927 47.78 19.03%
Eartham 50.3 0 0.00 50.6 0 0.00 0.00%
Easebourne 944.7 40,000 42.34 1,000.1 43,000 43 1.56%
East Dean 113.5 1,200 10.57 112.1 1,125 10.04 -5.01%
East Lavington 127.9 3,300 25.8 125.2 3,370 26.92 4.34%
East Wittering and Bracklesham 2,011.5 137,800 68.51 2,050.7 137,800 67.2 -1.91%
Ebernoe 136.4 1,842 13.5 135.2 1,892 13.99 3.63%
Elsted and Treyford 167.4 2,955 17.65 171.0 3,069 17.95 1.70%
Fernhurst 1,324.5 73,549 55.53 1,330.4 72,600 54.57 -1.73%
Fishbourne 1,059.9 40,823 38.52 1,074.9 42,850 39.86 3.48%
Fittleworth 527.2 18,500 35.09 525.6 19,000 36.15 3.02%
Funtington 805.2 20,000 24.84 799.3 20,000 25.02 0.72%
Graffham 325.9 12,000 36.82 328.5 13,000 39.57 7.47%
Harting 700.6 43,100 61.52 713.9 43,100 60.37 -1.87%
Heyshott 160.3 5,250 32.75 162.5 5,250 32.31 -1.34%
Hunston 408.0 45,410 111.3 419.2 56,000 133.59 20.03%
Kirdford  507.8 70,640 139.11 504.8 73,640 145.88 4.87%
Lavant 676.7 27,420 40.52 679.3 28,227 41.55 2.54%
Linch 41.0 0 0.00 43.7 0 0.00 0.00%
Lynchmere 1,037.3 66,517 64.13 1,042.3 71,506 68.6 6.97%
Lodsworth 386.4 16,724 43.28 390.0 17,226 44.17 2.06%
Loxwood 763.8 41,105 53.82 783.5 42,665 54.45 1.17%
Lurgashall 337.9 16,000 47.35 344.1 20,000 58.12 22.75%
Marden 56.7 0 0.00 54.7 0 0.00 0.00%
Midhurst Town 2,226.5 188,174 84.52 2,265.6 192,094 84.79 0.32%
Milland 488.5 30,730 62.91 486.0 33,695 69.33 10.21%

Page 32



Town and Parish Precepts (continued)
    

 2017/18 2018/19

Parish / Town Council Tax
Base

Precepts
£

Council 
Tax

Band D 
(£)

Tax
Base

Precepts
£

Council 
Tax

Band D 
(£)

Council 
Tax

Increase 

North Mundham 575.9 33,881 58.83 607.4 36,550 60.17 2.28%
Northchapel 325.1 27,670 85.11 323.9 28,439 87.80 3.16%
Oving 430.1 35,712 83.03 476.9 37,044 77.68 -6.44%
Petworth 1,270.8 112,800 88.76 1,283.9 118,214 92.07 3.73%
Plaistow and Ifold 1,097.1 42,000 38.28 1,124.4 62,000 55.14 44.04%
Rogate 784.0 30,980 39.52 782.4 30,925 39.53 0.03%
Selsey Town  4,245.0 328,988 77.50 4,318.5 347,639 80.50 3.87%
Sidlesham 590.6 28,745 48.67 600.2 29,626 49.36 1.42%
Singleton 246.7 12,605 51.09 247.4 14,427 58.31 14.13%
Southbourne 2,355.4 136,654 58.02 2,419.7 140,172 57.93 -0.16%
Stedham with Iping 416.8 19,500 46.79 423.9 20,500 48.36 3.36%
Stopham 48.7 1,000 20.53 46.1 1,500 32.54 58.50%
Stoughton 338.9 9,000 26.56 339.7 9,000 26.49 -0.26%
Sutton 128.8 5,177 40.2 126.4 5,180 40.98 1.94%
Tangmere 1,016.8 60,000 59.01 1,102.1 60,000 54.44 -7.74%
Tillington 301.6 16,000 53.05 297.5 16,000 53.78 1.38%
Trotton with Chithurst 157.4 3,000 19.06 154.5 3,000 19.42 1.89%
Upwaltham 15.9 0 0.00 15.6 0 0.00 0.00%
West Dean 217.8 12,000 55.1 213.0 12,000 56.34 2.25%
West Itchenor 406.0 22,160 54.58 411.4 23,573 57.30 4.98%
West Lavington 165.5 1,925 11.63 166.4 2,525 15.17 30.44%
West Thorney 222.6 0 0.00 222.4 0 0.00 0.00%
West Wittering 1,771.1 98,800 55.78 1,772.9 101,764 57.4 2.90%
Westbourne 916.4 77,804 84.9 935.3 80,495 86.06 1.37%
Westhampnett 372.5 42,900 115.17 424.9 42,900 100.96 -12.34%
Wisborough Green 736.1 56,000 76.08 758.5 59,000 77.79 2.25%
Woolbeding with Redford 90.6 4,530 50.00 91.5 4,700 51.37 2.74%
Total / Average 51,918.4 2,943,979 56.70 52,804.3 3,070,811 58.15 2.55%

Page 33


	Agenda
	1 Approval of Minutes
	6 Budget Spending Plans 2018-2019

